
 
 

AGENDA 

IOWA LOTTERY BOARD 
March 24, 2016 

10:00 am 
 

Join the meeting via UberConference 
https://uberconference.com/ialottery 

or 
Dial In: 515-207-3637 (no PIN needed) 

 
  

I. Call to Order 

a. Approval of Agenda 

b. Approval of Minutes – December 21, 2015  

II. Quarterly Reports 

a. Financial  

b. Marketing  

c. Security 

d. Legislative 

e. Legal 

III. Contract Extensions  

a. Game Auditing Services, Advertising Services, Media Services 

IV. Approval of Membership Dues  

V. WLS 2016 

VI. Lucky for Life Update 

VII. Succession Planning  

VIII. Closed Session  

a. DCI Presentation – Szrek2Solutions Background Check 

IX. Open Session 

X. CEO Report 

XI. Board Recognition 

XII. Adjournment 

 
If you require the assistance of auxiliary aids or services to participate in or attend the meeting because of a disability, 
please call our ADA coordinator at 515-725-7864, or if you are hearing impaired, call Relay TTY at 1-800-735-2942. 

https://uberconference.com/ialottery


 

 

MINUTES 

IOWA LOTTERY BOARD 
December 21, 2015 

2:00 p.m. 
 
 
The Iowa Lottery Board convened at 2:00 p.m.; Board Chairperson Matt McDermott presiding.  
 
 

Board Members Present on Teleconference:  
Matt McDermott, chair; Mary Rathje; Connor Flynn; Mike Klappholz 

 
Board Members Absent:  
Ying Sa   
 

Lottery Staff Participating on the Teleconference:  
Terry Rich, CEO; Larry Loss, EVP; Mary Neubauer, VP, External Relations; Hale Strasser, VP, Systems 
Operations; Rob Porter, VP, Legal Counsel; Doug Orr, Dir of Retail Sales; David VanCompernolle, 
Assistant AG; Deb Bassett, Board Secretary 
 

Guests:  
Rod Boshart, Cedar Rapids Gazette 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairperson McDermott called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. and roll was taken. There was a 
quorum. Chairperson McDermott announced the meeting would be held via teleconference in 
accordance with Iowa Code section 21.8.  
 
Flynn moved to conduct the meeting via teleconference. Rathje seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Klappholz moved to approve the December 9, 2015 board meeting minutes.  Flynn seconded. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
RANDOM NUMBER GENERATOR DRAWING SYSTEM RFP 
Strasser presented information on the Random Number Generator Bid Selection and a summary of the 
scoring. 
 
A 3-person committee reviewed and scored the three (3) bids submitted for the RFP. Of the 3 bidders, 
only 2 vendors submitted compliant bids; Szrek2Solutions a Rhode Island based company and SCA, a 
Texas-based company. The other vendor, SmartPlay, a New Jersey based company, was disqualified 
because of noncompliance to some key provisions of the RFP; particularly with respect to RFP 
requirement 3.0.B as the equipment and solution proposed by Smartplay would not fit in the ILA 
cabinet. It was noted that even if Smartplay had not been disqualified, they would have only placed 2nd 
in scoring.  
 



 

 

Flynn asked about the committee’s range of scoring for the technical component of the RFP. In general, 
there are many things that can influence scoring. Of the 3 bids, Szrek2Solutions had the highest total 
points. And the general consensus among committee members was that Szrek2Solutions provided the 
best solution for the RFP. 
 
Flynn also asked whether the cabinets used for draw equipment were in all retail outlets. Lottery staff 
explained the cabinets are not at retail locations; only at the Lottery. The room at ILA headquarters 
where draw operations take place has a pair of cabinets. In addition, another pair is kept at an offsite 
location for back up purposes. These cabinets house the RNG equipment and are sealed with an audit 
tag to prevent unauthorized access. The cabinets have to fit in a controlled room which has limited 
physical space. The Lottery would not allow any proposed modification to the mandatory requirement 
3.0.B that would leave the draw equipment unsecured or require more physical space in the draw room.  
 
The evaluation committee recommended to the Board that the Iowa Lottery issue a Notice of Intent to 
Award to Szrek2Solutions, a Rhode Island-based company, subject to the successful completion of a DCI 
background investigation. 
 
The committee also recommended that the CEO, working with the Lottery’s Vice-President, Security, 
authorize completion of a background investigation of Szreck2Solutions and that the Vice-President, 
General Counsel begin contract negotiations with Szrek2Solutions. 
 
Rathje moved to approve the recommendation to issue a Notice of Intent to Award to Szrek2Solutions. 
Flynn seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Klappholz moved the meeting be adjourned. Flynn seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 2:13 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IOWA LOTTERY

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

FY 2016

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

Month

Gross Sales Budget '16 23,834,084   25,461,659   23,733,551   24,811,289    27,194,561   26,705,439     26,858,803     29,997,407     31,388,556     27,291,539     28,928,003     24,945,109     

5-year av. 23,411,245   25,009,945   23,312,496   24,371,114    26,712,104   26,231,659     26,382,303     28,787,466     30,153,935     26,129,603     27,737,035     23,824,802     

Actual '16 25,907,997   25,180,933   26,791,422   26,284,951    25,413,630   30,084,542     54,079,072     -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Prize Expense Budget '16 14,116,232   15,080,197   14,056,689   14,695,002    16,106,544   15,816,852     15,907,685     59.23% 1) 17,766,588     18,590,525     16,163,982     17,133,211     14,774,260     

5-year av. 14,170,986   14,598,857   13,709,047   14,346,043    15,220,681   16,164,184     16,073,258     60.92% 2) 17,141,508     17,868,628     15,188,040     16,429,395     14,296,686     

Actual '16 15,690,151   15,581,596   15,908,821   16,370,729    14,944,595   19,305,677     30,211,996     55.87% 3) -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Operating Expenses Budget '16 503,008        1,092,391     1,579,119     953,326          1,092,391     1,092,391       1,092,391       1,092,391       1,579,119       1,092,391       953,326          2,039,118       

5-year av. 508,168        841,926        1,067,719     1,035,796       1,004,500     862,588          923,101          979,081          1,002,573       1,087,245       1,021,482       1,419,524       

Actual '16 452,290        958,895        1,402,002     832,037          950,019        979,097          946,697          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total Proceeds Budget '16 5,680,642     5,513,526     4,578,448     5,483,856       5,963,120     5,836,220       5,876,009       6,690,306       6,564,506       5,988,281       6,551,919       4,432,783       

5-year av. 5,566,219     6,066,103     6,037,982     6,196,005       7,314,599     5,605,872       6,159,970       7,271,757       7,422,268       6,634,641       6,935,723       4,809,997       

Actual '16 6,188,361     5,102,911     6,813,453     5,656,822       6,099,550     6,211,365       17,267,602     -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

YEAR TO DATE

Gross Sales Budget '16 23,834,084   49,295,743   73,029,294   97,840,583    125,035,144 151,740,583   178,599,386   208,596,793   239,985,349   267,276,888   296,204,891   321,150,000   

5-year av. 23,411,245   48,421,190   71,733,686   96,104,800    122,816,904 149,048,563   175,430,866   21.84% 4) 204,218,332   234,372,267   260,501,870   288,238,905   312,063,707   

Actual '16 25,907,997   51,088,930   77,880,352   104,165,303  129,578,933 159,663,475   213,742,547   19.68% 5)

Prize Expense Budget '16 14,116,232   29,196,429   43,253,118   57,948,120    74,054,664   89,871,516     105,779,201   59.23% 1) 123,545,789   142,136,314   158,300,296   175,433,507   190,207,767   

5-year av. 14,170,986   28,769,843   42,478,890   56,824,933    72,045,614   88,209,798     104,283,056   59.44% 2) 121,424,564   139,293,192   154,481,232   170,910,627   185,207,313   

Actual '16 15,690,151   31,271,747   47,180,568   63,551,297    78,495,892   97,801,569     128,013,565   59.89% 3)

Operating Expenses Budget '16 503,008        1,595,399     3,174,518     4,127,844       5,220,235     6,312,626       7,405,017       8,497,408       10,076,527     11,168,918     12,122,244     14,161,362     

5-year av. 508,168        1,350,094     2,417,813     3,453,609       4,458,109     5,320,697       6,243,798       7,222,879       8,225,452       9,312,697       10,334,179     11,753,703     

Actual '16 452,290        1,411,185     2,813,187     3,645,224       4,595,243     5,574,340       6,521,037       

Total Proceeds Budget '16 5,680,642     11,194,168   15,772,616   21,256,472    27,219,592   33,055,812     38,931,821     45,622,127     52,186,633     58,174,914     64,726,833     69,159,616     

5-year av. 5,566,219     11,632,322   17,670,304   23,866,309    31,180,908   36,786,780     42,946,750     24.20% 4) 50,218,507     57,640,775     64,275,416     71,211,139     76,021,136     

Actual '16 6,188,361     11,291,272   18,104,725   23,761,547    29,861,097   36,072,462     53,340,064     37.01% 5)

1)  Budget FY16 Prize Payout

2)  Actual 5-year average Prize Payout

3)  Actual FY16 Prize Payout

4)  Actual FY16 compared to Actual 5-year average

5) Actual FY16 compared to Budget FY16



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

For the Five Months Ending Monday, November 30, 2015

Month ended Month ended Year-to-date Year-to-date

11/30/2015 11/30/2014 11/30/2015 11/30/2014

Operating revenues:    

Instant-scratch ticket sales $17,959,969.00  $16,959,511.00  $88,153,766.00  $81,754,109.00

Pick 3 sales 592,646.00         564,134.00         3,040,028.50      2,805,285.50     

Powerball sales 2,980,528.00      3,870,662.00      18,871,652.50    18,927,558.00   

Mega Millions Sales 1,387,369.00      1,394,332.00      6,217,711.00      7,652,487.00     

Hot Lotto sales 758,725.00         753,325.00         3,900,185.00      4,662,125.00     

Pick 4 sales 275,918.50         265,195.50         1,453,614.00      1,289,878.50     

All or Nothing sales 340,021.00         352,885.00         1,768,068.00      2,021,893.00     

Monopoly Millionaires' Club sales -                      254,280.00         -                      408,935.00        

Pull-tab sales 1,118,453.04      1,120,078.77      6,173,907.56      6,547,723.49     

Application fees 100.00                250.00                1,575.00             1,225.00            

Other 378.64                422.58                3,335.55             2,251.69            

Total operating revenues 25,414,108.18  25,535,075.85  129,583,843.11  126,073,471.18

Operating expenses:    

Scratch ticket 11,018,118.67    10,405,590.50    56,646,321.14    52,317,484.55   

Pick 3 348,617.60         335,470.40         1,796,287.10      1,654,941.30     

Powerball 1,451,730.00      1,900,426.50      9,246,701.00      9,119,394.50     

Mega Millions 671,039.50         637,436.43         3,016,942.50      3,722,178.93     

Hot Lotto 370,910.50         352,343.39         1,867,803.15      2,246,522.84     

Pick 4 161,301.10         191,143.00         860,878.40         845,195.50        

All or Nothing 200,942.39         213,531.38         1,046,507.49      1,223,451.35     

Monopoly Millionaires' Club (8,201.00)            602,069.07         (10,433.00)          686,024.25        

Pull-tab 700,726.34         700,537.89         3,862,164.48      4,095,052.08     

VIP Club prize expense 24,041.97           18,000.00           104,510.30         109,810.90        

Promotional 5,367.81             12,719.11           58,209.42           69,711.39          

Advertising/publicity 588,964.46         687,431.53         2,791,461.99      2,909,112.26     

Retailer compensation expense 1,661,894.75      1,628,194.23      8,381,565.61      8,087,420.50     

Ticket expense 305,973.19         340,820.68         1,236,563.45      1,296,978.39     

Vendor compensation expense 524,959.66         499,589.20         2,626,574.04      2,539,256.71     

Online game expense -                      2,662.50             -                      4,733.65            

Salary and benefits 809,237.35         746,762.74         4,133,412.87      3,920,579.64     

Travel 24,902.67           30,045.14           125,981.09         220,206.48        

Supplies 5,910.89             5,730.08             49,805.43           47,676.20          

Printing 170.00                -                      263.80                188.75               

Postage 280.94                373.74                1,786.51             1,721.42            

Communications 14,153.97           13,229.56           64,673.38           66,526.80          

Rentals 25,548.15           25,017.16           128,229.64         127,033.92        

Utilities 5,606.50             8,595.03             31,864.82           64,336.50          

Professional fees 10,892.63           33,372.71           43,112.90           77,990.92          

Vending machine maintenance 52,327.48           49,129.38           246,226.21         239,497.00        

Outside services and repairs 52,161.68           45,772.91           330,755.05         313,311.39        

Data processing 11,173.16           8,217.85             51,383.10           40,637.52          

Equipment 28,945.90           25,820.11           168,833.23         144,340.60        

Reimbursement to other state agencies 33,997.07           34,868.30           188,466.50         179,865.23        

Depreciation 27,655.92           17,001.85           135,781.14         94,787.62          

Other 3,905.75             4,048.23             24,890.09           34,184.21          

MUSL/Lotto administrative expense 9,337.20             12,787.57           46,686.00           50,451.35          

Total operating expenses 19,142,594.20  19,588,738.17  99,304,208.83  96,550,604.65

Operating income 6,271,513.98  5,946,337.68  30,279,634.28  29,522,866.53

Non-operating revenue (expenses):    

Proceeds provided to State General Fund (6,099,550.39)     (5,450,755.60)     (27,361,097.61)   (27,674,538.69)  

Proceeds provided to Veteran's Trust Fund -                      (160,295.79)        (2,500,000.00)     (1,277,020.63)    

Interest income 1,303.81             3,339.43             99,886.76           15,405.79          

Interest expense -                      -                      -                      (4,172.48)           

Gain (Loss) on disposal of capital assets 14,650.00           -                      24,250.00           (367,766.29)       

Net non-operating revenues (expenses) (6,083,596.58)  (5,607,711.96)  (29,736,960.85)  (29,308,092.30)

Change in net position 187,917.40  338,625.72  542,673.43  214,774.23

   

Net position beginning of year 6,153,093.81  9,390,004.30  5,798,337.78  9,513,855.79

Net position end of year 6,341,011.21  9,728,630.02  6,341,011.21  9,728,630.02



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

For the Six Months Ending December 31, 2015

Month ended Month ended Year-to-date Year-to-date

12/31/2015 12/31/2014 12/31/2015 12/31/2014

Operating revenues:    

Instant-scratch ticket sales $19,687,205.00  $17,922,997.00  $107,840,971.00  $99,677,106.00

Pick 3 sales 637,641.50         603,920.50         3,677,670.00        3,409,206.00     

Powerball sales 5,669,881.00      3,488,698.00      24,541,533.50      22,416,256.00   

Mega Millions Sales 1,224,343.00      1,705,410.00      7,442,054.00        9,357,897.00     

Hot Lotto sales 759,895.00         802,399.00         4,660,080.00        5,464,524.00     

Pick 4 sales 289,692.00         273,426.00         1,743,306.00        1,563,304.50     

All or Nothing sales 349,767.00         369,295.00         2,117,835.00        2,391,188.00     

Monopoly Millionaires' Club sales -                      182,670.00         -                        591,605.00        

Pull-tab sales 1,466,117.47      1,485,038.99      7,640,025.03        8,032,762.48     

Application fees 425.00                175.00                2,000.00               1,400.00            

Other 255.13                454.57                3,590.68               2,706.26            

Total operating revenues 30,085,222.10  26,834,484.06  159,669,065.21  152,907,955.24

Operating expenses:    

Scratch ticket 13,843,791.56    12,783,893.99    70,490,112.70      65,101,378.54   

Pick 3 377,984.90         357,422.30         2,174,272.00        2,012,363.60     

Powerball 2,791,725.00      1,700,487.50      12,038,426.00      10,819,882.00   

Mega Millions 592,043.50         705,619.00         3,608,986.00        4,427,797.93     

Hot Lotto 371,233.50         367,583.02         2,239,036.65        2,614,105.86     

Pick 4 165,565.20         156,680.60         1,026,443.60        1,001,876.10     

All or Nothing 208,237.68         223,461.06         1,254,745.17        1,446,912.41     

Monopoly Millionaires' Club (4,512.00)            97,190.20           (14,945.00)            783,214.45        

Pull-tab 916,350.87         930,224.26         4,778,515.35        5,025,276.34     

VIP Club prize expense 36,672.80           41,000.00           141,183.10           150,810.90        

Promotional 6,583.78             5,994.96             64,793.20             75,706.35          

Advertising/publicity 626,510.76         551,129.16         3,417,972.75        3,460,241.42     

Retailer compensation expense 1,980,194.76      1,740,502.88      10,361,760.37      9,827,923.38     

Ticket expense 266,306.71         242,845.94         1,502,870.16        1,539,824.33     

Vendor compensation expense 623,759.28         553,031.71         3,250,333.32        3,092,288.42     

Online game expense -                      1,829.75             -                        6,563.40            

Salary and benefits 897,310.56         902,449.03         5,030,723.43        4,823,028.67     

Travel 13,556.17           24,893.03           139,551.03           245,099.51        

Supplies 29,770.51           8,160.77             79,575.94             55,836.97          

Printing -                      1,593.50             263.80                  1,782.25            

Postage 367.28                174.11                2,153.79               1,895.53            

Communications 13,868.28           18,113.70           78,541.66             84,640.50          

Rentals 25,358.22           25,218.13           153,587.86           152,252.05        

Utilities 7,947.86             22,216.08           39,812.68             86,552.58          

Professional fees 5,638.65             7,982.82             48,751.55             85,973.74          

Vending machine maintenance 50,390.76           48,519.18           296,616.97           288,016.18        

Outside services and repairs 86,578.16           120,040.43         417,333.21           433,351.82        

Data processing 10,344.21           8,698.38             61,727.31             49,335.90          

Equipment 58,306.60           158,139.75         227,139.83           302,480.35        

Reimbursement to other state agencies 31,633.52           39,537.70           220,100.02           219,402.93        

Depreciation 28,003.62           21,299.71           163,784.76           116,087.33        

Other 4,741.29             27,352.64           29,617.61             61,536.85          

MUSL/Lotto administrative expense 9,337.20             11,080.49           56,023.20             61,531.84          

Total operating expenses 24,075,601.19  21,904,365.78  123,379,810.02  118,454,970.43

Operating income 6,009,620.91  4,930,118.28  36,289,255.19  34,452,984.81

Non-operating revenue (expenses):    

Proceeds provided to State General Fund (6,211,364.67)     (4,426,372.36)     (33,572,462.28)     (32,100,911.05)  

Proceeds provided to Veteran's Trust Fund -                      (39,268.18)          (2,500,000.00)       (1,316,288.81)    

Interest income 10,909.51           5,660.92             110,796.27           21,066.71          

Interest expense -                      -                      -                        (4,172.48)           

Gain (Loss) on disposal of capital assets -                      6,220.00             24,250.00             (361,546.29)       

Net non-operating revenues (expenses) (6,200,455.16)  (4,453,759.62)  (35,937,416.01)  (33,761,851.92)

Change in net position (190,834.25)  476,358.66  351,839.18  691,132.89

   

Net position beginning of year 6,341,011.21  9,728,630.02  5,798,337.78  9,513,855.79

Net position end of year 6,150,176.96  10,204,988.68  6,150,176.96  10,204,988.68



IOWA LOTTERY AUTHORITY

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

For the Seven Months Ending January 31, 2016

Month ended Month ended Year-to-date Year-to-date

1/31/2016 1/31/2015 1/31/2016 1/31/2015

Operating revenues:    

Instant-scratch ticket sales $20,835,831.00  $19,004,490.00  $128,676,802.00  $118,681,596.00

Pick 3 sales 620,937.50         584,934.50         4,298,607.50        3,994,140.50       

Powerball sales 28,419,183.50    6,433,961.00      52,960,717.00      28,850,217.00     

Mega Millions Sales 1,432,911.00      1,965,126.00      8,874,965.00        11,323,023.00     

Hot Lotto sales 839,210.00         865,814.00         5,499,290.00        6,330,338.00       

Pick 4 sales 284,927.00         265,743.00         2,028,233.00        1,829,047.50       

All or Nothing sales 351,918.00         365,953.00         2,469,753.00        2,757,141.00       

Monopoly Millionaires' Club sales -                      -                     -                        591,605.00          

Lucky for Life sales 77,474.00           -                     77,474.00             -                      

Pull-tab sales 1,216,679.97      1,230,775.97      8,856,705.00        9,263,538.45       

Application fees 275.00                200.00                2,275.00               1,600.00              

Other 373.05                278.23                3,963.73               2,984.49              

Total operating revenues 54,079,720.02    30,717,275.70    213,748,785.23    183,625,230.94   

Operating expenses:    

Scratch ticket 13,365,036.90    12,266,011.00    83,855,149.60      77,367,389.54     

Pick 3 368,582.50         344,460.70         2,542,854.50        2,356,824.30       

Powerball 14,154,045.50    3,179,234.50      26,192,471.50      13,999,116.50     

Mega Millions 689,211.50         971,952.00         4,298,197.50        5,399,749.93       

Hot Lotto 409,167.00         419,041.65         2,648,203.65        3,033,147.51       

Pick 4 169,906.20         155,135.80         1,196,349.80        1,157,011.90       

All or Nothing 207,484.28         220,468.90         1,462,229.45        1,667,381.31       

Monopoly Millionaires' Club -                      (114,771.71)        (14,945.00)            668,442.74          

Lucky for Life 50,314.35           -                     50,314.35             -                      

Pull-tab 761,745.31         768,816.14         5,540,260.66        5,794,092.48       

VIP Club prize expense 14,508.03           15,000.00           155,691.13           165,810.90          

Promotional 21,994.45           7,095.49             86,787.65             82,801.84            

Advertising/publicity 695,648.14         550,963.62         4,113,620.89        4,011,205.04       

Retailer compensation expense 3,409,991.15      1,992,166.91      13,771,751.52      11,820,090.29     

Ticket expense 275,551.16         279,558.46         1,778,421.32        1,819,382.79       

Vendor compensation expense 1,157,354.39      624,044.37         4,407,687.71        3,716,332.79       

Online game expense -                      -                     -                        6,563.40              

Salary and benefits 801,980.26         835,686.12         5,832,703.69        5,658,714.79       

Travel 19,127.71           21,736.17           158,678.74           266,835.68          

Supplies 6,235.07             13,147.46           85,811.01             68,984.43            

Printing -                      2,158.48             263.80                  3,940.73              

Postage 2,812.72             381.64                4,966.51               2,277.17              

Communications 13,108.38           7,494.74             91,650.04             92,135.24            

Rentals 25,361.33           25,029.98           178,949.19           177,282.03          

Utilities 9,456.81             10,311.37           49,269.49             96,863.95            

Professional fees 8,117.13             6,810.55             56,868.68             92,784.29            

Vending machine maintenance 50,390.76           48,486.61           347,007.73           336,502.79          

Outside services and repairs 63,689.46           65,776.24           481,022.67           499,128.06          

Data processing 10,398.66           8,946.27             72,125.97             58,282.17            

Equipment 39,964.32           34,644.11           267,104.15           337,124.46          

Reimbursement to other state agencies 27,934.47           28,843.39           248,034.49           248,246.32          

Depreciation 27,829.77           36,165.42           191,614.53           152,252.75          

Other 4,483.97             9,453.27             34,101.58             70,990.12            

MUSL/Lotto administrative expense 9,337.20             7,329.47             65,360.40             68,861.31            

Total operating expenses 36,870,768.88    22,841,579.12    160,250,578.90    141,296,549.55   

Operating income 17,208,951.14    7,875,696.58      53,498,206.33      42,328,681.39     

Non-operating revenue (expenses):    

Proceeds provided to State General Fund (17,267,602.32)   (7,277,557.46)     (50,840,064.60)     (39,378,468.51)    

Proceeds provided to Veteran's Trust Fund -                      (249,778.60)        (2,500,000.00)       (1,566,067.41)      

Interest income 6,428.55             11,701.80           117,224.82           32,768.51            

Interest expense -                      (618.51)               -                        (4,790.99)             

Gain (Loss) on disposal of capital assets -                      (2,049.61)            24,250.00             (363,595.90)         

Net non-operating revenues (expenses) (17,261,173.77)   (7,518,302.38)     (53,198,589.78)     (41,280,154.30)    

Change in net position (52,222.63)          357,394.20         299,616.55           1,048,527.09       

   

Net position beginning of year 6,150,176.96      10,204,988.68    5,798,337.78        9,513,855.79       

Net position end of year 6,097,954.33      10,562,382.88    6,097,954.33        10,562,382.88     



 

                                                                                                                                              

                           
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35 35 

44 

38 

2 1 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Wells Steck Scanlan Glenn Wolf Coppess

2016 Record of Contacts 

Record of Contacts Total 155 

2016  

Security Report 
March 24, 2016 



 

                                                                                                                                              

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 

 

 

 

1 2 

16 

74 11 

14 

5 
10 

2 
11 

5 4 

2016 Record of Contacts by Type 

Law Enforcement

Lottery Assist

Missing Packs/Tickets

Other/Explain in Narrative

Quality Control Check

Theft

Regional Assist

Validation

Compliance

Retailer Assist

Customer Assist

Validation- WinnerTotal= 155 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

5 Year Trend for Record of Contacts  

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Goal to work with staff to define the categories of 

“Other/Explain in Narrative” and “To Be Determined” 



 

                                                                                                                                              

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

1 

1 

5 

1 

2 

2016 Cases by Type 

Burglary

Retailer Employee Theft

Fraud/Forgery

Theft

To Be Determined

Total 16 

A Record of Contact is given a case number when the 

event being investigated is considered a criminal act 

 

 Fraud case involves lottery tickets purchased with 

checks on closed account 

 

 Retailer Employee Theft is in reference to a store 

clerk taking product from their employer, to 

include lottery tickets  



 
 

 

 

Date: March 24, 2016 

 

To: Iowa Lottery Board 

From: Brenda Nye and Robert Porter 

Re: Game Auditing Contract Extension 

 

The Iowa Lottery issued IL IL-11-02, Request for Proposal, auditing services, on January 

18, 2011.  The purpose of the RFP was to solicit proposals from qualified independent 

certified public accountants to provide auditing services for the Iowa Lottery’s drawing 

events and other special events as required by Iowa Code Chapter 99G. 

 

At the time, three vendors (Faller, Kincheloe & Co., PLC, LWBJ, LLP, and McGladrey 

& Pullen, LLP) submitted bids.  At its April 28, 2011 meeting, the Iowa Lottery Board 

ultimately approved an award of the auditing services contract to McGladrey & Pullen, 

LLP. 

 

The auditing services agreement commenced on May 1, 2011, and the original term ran 

for one (1) year, with five (5) additional one-year option periods beyond the original 

term.  The Lottery has previously exercised the first four options under this agreement, 

and now seeks to exercise the last remaining option for this contract. 

 

In FY 2015, the cost of the auditing services contract was $4,871.56. 

 

Background 

The Iowa Lottery has been pleased with the services provided by McGladrey pursuant to 

this agreement.  McGladrey has been a consistent partner of the Iowa Lottery, and the 

Lottery seeks to exercise the remaining extension under this agreement. 

 

Recommendation 

The Iowa Lottery requests that the Board approve the exercise of the final available 

extension of the auditing services agreement, making the contract term run through April 

30, 2017. 

 



EXTENSION  TO THE AGREEMENT 
 FOR GAME AUDITING SERVICES 

 
 
 
 This Extension of Agreement for Game Auditing Services (Extension) is effective on  
May 1, 2016, and is made by and between the Iowa Lottery Authority (Lottery) and McGladrey LLP 
(Contractor).   
 In consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Amendment, the sufficiency of which is 
acknowledged, it is agreed as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  IDENTITY OF THE PARTIES. 
 1.1  The Iowa Lottery Authority is an instrumentality of the State of Iowa and is authorized by Iowa 
Code Chapter 99G to conduct a lottery in the State of Iowa.  The Lottery’s address is 13001 University 
Avenue, Clive, IA  50325.    
 1.2  The Contractor is a limited liability partnership engaged in the business, of among other 
things, providing game auditing services.  Contractor’s address is 400 Locust Street, Suite 640, Des 
Moines, IA 50309.   
 
SECTION 2.  STATEMENT OF AGREEMENT AND PURPOSE.  The Lottery and Contractor entered into 
an Agreement for the purpose of retaining Contractor to conduct game auditing services for Lottery 
drawings held during the term of the agreement.   
 
SECTION 3.  EXTENSION.  On or about May 1, 2011 and Amended 11/25/13, the Lottery and Contractor 
entered into an Agreement for Game Auditing Services (Agreement).  The term of the Agreement was for 
one year, plus five (5) one-year option periods exercisable at the option of the Lottery.  Pursuant to 
Section 4 of the Agreement, the term of the Agreement is hereby extended through April 30, 2017. 
 
SECTION 4.  RATIFICATION.  Except as expressly amended hereby, the Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect, and the parties hereby ratify and confirm the terms and conditions thereof. 
 
SECTION 5.  AUTHORIZATION.  Each party to this Agreement represents and warrants to the other that: 
 5.1  It has the right, power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this 
Agreement. 
 5.2  It has taken all requisite action  (corporate or otherwise) to approve execution, delivery and 
performance of this Agreement, and this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation upon 
itself in accordance with its terms, except as enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency and 
similar laws. 
 
SECTION 6.  EXECUTION. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth above and for other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and legal sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties have entered into the above Agreement and have caused their duly authorized 
representatives to execute this Amendment. 
 
 
Iowa Lottery Authority  McGladrey LLP 
   
   
   
By:______________________________________  By:  ________________________________ 
 Larry Loss   Rod Foster 
 Executive Vice President               Managing Partner 
   
Date:  ___________________________________  Date:  ______________________________ 
   

 



 
 

 

 

Date: March 24, 2016 

 

To: Iowa Lottery Board 

From: Teri TeBockhorst and Robert Porter 

Re: Advertising and Media Services Contract Extensions 

 

The Iowa Lottery issued IL IL-12-01, Request for Proposal, Advertising and Related 

Services, on January 13, 2012. 

 

The purpose of this Request for Proposal (RFP) was to solicit proposals from qualified 

vendors to assist the Iowa Lottery in its brand building and strategic marketing efforts.  

The RFP sought solicitations for both advertising/creative services and for media 

services, and allowed prospective vendors to bid on one or both portions of the business. 

 

At the time, three vendors (Strategic America, Trilix Marketing, and ZLR Ignition) 

submitted bids for both contracts, and one vendor (Gazette Communications, Inc. DBA 

Fusionfarm) bid solely on the creative/advertising contract.  At its May 31, 2012 meeting, 

the Iowa Lottery Board ultimately approved an award of both the advertising/creative 

contract and the media services contract to Strategic America. 

 

Both these agreements commenced on July 1, 2012, and the original terms ran through 

2014, with four (4) additional one-year option periods beyond the original terms.  The 

Lottery has previously exercised the first two options under both the advertising/creative 

and the media services agreements. 

 

In FY 2015, the estimated cost of the advertising/creative agreement was $4,707,216 and 

the estimated cost of the media services agreement was $324,072. 

 

Background 

The Iowa Lottery has been pleased with the services provided by Strategic America 

pursuant to this agreement.  SA has proven to be a capable business partner, and its 

assistance has been a factor in the Iowa Lottery’s success.  The Iowa Lottery seeks to 

exercise the third extension period available under each of these agreements, so that the 

parties can continue to work together to achieve great results for Iowans. 

 

Recommendation 

The Iowa Lottery requests that the Board approve the exercise of the third available 

extension of the advertising/creative agreement and the media services agreement with 

Strategic America, making the term run through June 30, 2017. 

 



EXTENSION TO THE AGREEMENT 
FOR CREATIVE ADVERTISING SERVICES 

 
THIS EXTENSION, is effective on July 1, 2016 and is made by and between the IOWA LOTTERY 
AUTHORITY (Lottery) and STRATEGIC AMERICA (Agency). In consideration of the premises and the 
mutual promises and covenants contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. IDENTITY OF THE PARTIES. 
 
1.1  The Iowa Lottery Authority is an instrumentality of the State of Iowa and is authorized by Iowa Code 
Chapter 99G to conduct a lottery in the State of Iowa. The Lottery's address is 13001 University Avenue, 
Clive, IA 50325. 
 
1.2 Strategic America is an Iowa corporation, whose business, is among other things, of providing 
creative advertising services for clients. The address for Agency is 6600 Westown Parkway, Suite 100, 
West Des Moines, lA 50266. 
 
SECTION 2. STATEMENT OF AGREEMENT AND PURPOSE. The Lottery and Agency entered into a 
two-year Agreement providing that the Agency would provide advertising and marketing support for 
planning and preparation of materials intended to advertise the Lottery, its services and products during 
the term of the Agreement. 
 
SECTION 3. EXTENSION. On July 1, 2012, the Lottery and Agency entered into an Agreement for 
Creative Advertising Services (reference RFP 12-01). The term of the Agreement was for a two-year 
period with four one-year option periods. The Agreement was amended in August 2012 to reflect a 
change to Section 6.2 Monthly, Billings. Pursuant to Section 4 of the Agreement, the third option period of 
the Agreement is hereby exercised through June 30, 2017.  Agency shall submit an updated Schedule B 
to reflect contractually agreed rates, which when approved by the Lottery will be incorporated into this 
Agreement as if fully set forth herein. 
 
SECTION 4. RATIFICATION. Except as expressly amended hereby, the Agreement or any other 
amendments to the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, and the parties hereby ratify and 
confirm the terms and conditions thereof. 
 
SECTION 5. AUTHORIZATION. Each party to this Agreement represents and warrants to the other that: 
 
5.1 It has the right, power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
5.2 It has taken all requisite action (corporate statutory or otherwise) to approve execution, delivery and 
performance of this Agreement, and this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation upon 
itself in accordance with its terms, except as enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency and 
similar laws. 
 
SECTION 6. EXECUTION.  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth 
above and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and legal sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, the parties have entered into the above Agreement and have caused their duly 
authorized representatives to execute this Agreement. 
 
Iowa Lottery Authority    Strategic America 
 
 
_______________________________  ___________________________________ 
Larry Loss     Name     John C. Schreurs 
Executive Vice President   Title:       President    
Date __________________________  Date  ______________________________  



 
EXTENSION TO THE AGREEMENT FOR 

MEDIA PLANNING, BUYING SERVICES AND PRODUCTS 
 

THIS EXTENSION, is effective on July 1, 2016 and is made by and between the IOWA LOTTERY 
AUTHORITY (Lottery) and STRATEGIC AMERICA (Agency). In consideration of the premises and the 
mutual promises and covenants herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. IDENTITY OF THE PARTIES. 
 
1.1 The Iowa Lottery Authority is an instrumentality of the State of Iowa and is authorized by Iowa Code 
Chapter 99G to conduct a lottery in the State of Iowa. The Lottery's address is 13001 University Avenue, 
Clive, IA 50325. 
 
1.2 Strategic America is an Iowa corporation, whose business, is among other things, of providing media 
purchasing services for clients. The address for Agency is 6600 Westown Parkway, Suite1 00, West Des 
Moines, lA 50266. 
 
SECTION 2. STATEMENT OF AGREEMENT AND PURPOSE. The Lottery and Agency entered into a 
two-year Agreement, plus extensions, providing for media planning and buying services by the Agency to 
support advertising and marketing efforts to sell Lottery products. 
 
SECTION 3. EXTENSION. Effective July 1, 2012, the Lottery and the Agency entered into an Agreement 
(reference RFP 12-01) for media planning and buying services. The term of the Agreement was for a two-
year period with four (4) one-year option periods. Effective September 2012 the Agreement was amended 
to reflect a revised Section 6.3 for Ad-Grab Services. Pursuant to Section 4 of the Agreement, the term of 
the Agreement is hereby extended for the third option period through June 30, 2017. Agency shall submit 
an updated Schedule B to reflect contractually agreed rates, which when approved by the Lottery will be 
incorporated into this Agreement as if fully set forth herein. 
 
SECTION 4. RATIFICATION. Except as expressly amended hereby, the Agreement or any other 
amendments to the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, and the parties hereby ratify and 
confirm the terms and conditions thereof. 
 
SECTION 5. AUTHORIZATION. Each party to this Agreement represents and warrants to the other that: 
 
5.1 It has the right, power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
5.2 It has taken all requisite action (corporate statutory or otherwise) to approve execution, delivery and 
performance of this Agreement, and this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation upon 
itself in accordance with its terms, except as enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency and 
similar laws. 
 
SECTION 6. EXECUTION.  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth 
above and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and legal sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, the parties have entered into the above Agreement and have caused their duly 
authorized representatives to execute this Agreement. 
 
Iowa Lottery Authority    Strategic America 
 
 
_______________________________  ___________________________________ 
Larry Loss     Name     John C. Schreurs 
Executive Vice President   Title:       President    
Date __________________________  Date  ______________________________  
 



 

 

Date: 3-24-2016 

 

To:   Iowa Lottery Board 

From:  Larry L. Loss 

Re:   2016 Association Membership Dues 

 

For many years, the Iowa Lottery has participated as a member of the Iowa Grocery Industry Association 

(IGIA), the Petroleum Marketers and Convenience Stores of Iowa (PMCI), the North American 

Association of State & Provincial Lotteries (NASPL) and the World Lottery Association (WLA).  As you 

are aware, the Board must approve memberships for the lottery.  These billings come in annually at about 

the same time, so as with past practice, we have packaged them for Board approval. 

 

Membership and active participation in IGIA events and activities has led to greater cooperation between 

the Iowa Lottery and our retailers. IGIA represents the interests of a majority of our retailer outlets.  

Membership enables us to keep up to date on convenience and grocery store industry trends and concerns.   

ILA staff recommends approval of the $500 membership dues in IGIA.  

 

Again this year, the Iowa Lottery is seeking approval to participate as a business associate member of 

PMCI.  Membership and active participation in retailer industry events has enabled us to keep our fingers 

on the pulse of the industry and has led to stronger bonds of cooperation between the ILA and our 

convenience store retailers.  Convenience stores are the Lottery’s largest retailer trade type.   

ILA staff recommends approval of the $688 membership dues in PMCI. 

 

All North American lotteries are members of NASPL.  NASPL plays a critical role in connecting member 

lotteries with essential education, information and communication on key trends and issues and acts as a 

united voice for the lottery industry on critical issues.  NASPL is a key participant in building and 

maintaining relationships with national corporate retailers as well as the standardization or major 

procurements for member lotteries. 

ILA staff recommends approval of the $16,000 membership dues for NASPL. 

 

Staff further supports approval of membership in WLA.  Through our membership in WLA, the Iowa 

Lottery has access to educational information and training seminars, current trends and issues, security 

information and the opportunity to learn from and interact with lotteries across the world.  As with other 

ventures, lottery industry problems and opportunities are not constrained or defined by international 

borders. 

ILA staff recommends approval of the 5,600 Swiss Francs (approximately $5,682 at the monetary 

exchange rate current when this document was prepared on March 14, 2016) membership dues for 

WLA. 

 

The membership dues for all of these associations are the same as last year.  We are asking for the 

Board’s approval to continue our memberships.  Enclosed are invoices from the Iowa Grocery Industry 

Association, Petroleum Marketers and Convenience Stores of Iowa, North American Association of State 

& Provincial Lotteries and World Lottery Association.   















 
 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

March 24, 2016 
 
TO:  Iowa Lottery Board  
 
FR:  Terry Rich, CEO 
 
RE:  Succession Planning 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Due to personnel changes during the past year, the ILA management line of succession needs to 
be updated.  Management requests approval of the following line of succession: 
 

 CEO— Terry Rich (Statutory) 

 Executive VP / Sales and Product Development—Larry Loss  (Statutory) 

 VP Finance/CFO—Brenda Nye 

 VP External Relations—Mary Neubauer 

 VP Marketing—Teri Wood  

 VP General Counsel—Rob Porter 

 VP Operations & Systems—Hale Strasser 

 VP Security—Cam Coppess  

 

 

 


	00_Agenda 032416
	00_Minutes_Dec 21 2015 Mtg
	02a.1_Performance Measures 2016
	02a.2_November 2015 FY16 Stmt of REC - for release
	02a.3_December 2015 FY 16 Stmt of REC - for release
	02a.4_January 2016 FY16 Stmt of REC - for release
	02c_Security Report 2016 March Board Meeting_Final
	03a_game auditing extension summary
	03a_McGladrey 2016 ext
	03b_advertising extension summary
	03b_Strategic America 2016 creative svcs ext
	03c_Strategic America 2016 media svcs ext
	04a_Membership Dues 2016 Memo
	04b_IGIA dues
	04c_PMCI dues
	04d_NASPL dues
	04e_WLA dues
	07_Succession Planning Memo



